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Wahpeton, North Dakota

We have audifed the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the discretely presented component unif, each major fund and aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of Wahpeton, North Dakota, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2007,
which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the City of Wahpetan, North Dakota management. Qur
responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit,

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit aiso includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaiuating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

in our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely
presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of
Wahpeton, Wahpeton, North Dakota, as of December 31, 2007, and the respective changes in financial
position and cash flows, where applicable, for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have aiso issued our report dated September 10,
2008, on our consideration of the City of Wahpeton, North Dakota internal controf over financial reporting
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal controi over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide
an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part
of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in

assessing the results of our audit.

The management's discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 4 through 10
and pages 37 through 41 are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary
information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We
have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding
the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information.  However, we
did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.




CITY OF WAHPETON
Independent Auditor's Report - Conlinued

Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City of Wahpeton, North Dakota, basic financial statements. The schedule of fund activity is
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements.
The schedule of fund activity has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the

basic financial statements taken as a whole.

Robert R. Peterson
State Auditor

September 10, 2008



CITY OF WAHPETON
Wahpeton, North Dakota

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
December 31, 2007

The Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) of the City of Wahpeton's financial performance
provides an overali review of the City's financial activities for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007. The
intent of the MD&A is to look at the City’s financial performance as a whole. It should, therefore, be read in
conjunction with the basic financial statements and related notes.

EINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

.  Governmental assets exceeded its ligbilities (net assets) by $14,843,299 at the close of the mos!
recent fiscal year, Of this amount, 5338,687 (unrestricted net assets) may be used to meet the

government’s ongoing obligations.
« Business-type assets exceeded is liabilities by $4,862,084 at the close of the most recent fiscal

year.
e The total net assets of governmental activities of the City of Wahpeton decreased by $2,246,969 as
a result of the most recently completed fiscal year’s operations.
s Net assets of the business-type activities increased by $14,553 as a result of the most recently

completed fiscal year’s operations.
e Total revenues from all sources were $6,677,375 for governmental activities and $7,089,101 on the

modified accrual basis.

e Governmental expenditures exceeded revenues by $2,987,541 in the governmental fund-based
statements and governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $8,686,231.
Approximately 62% ($5,396,626) of this is available for spending at the government’s discretion
(unreserved fund balances). :

«  General fund revenues were $2,394,200 and general fund expenditures were $2,403,051. General
fund expenditures exceeded revenues by $8,851 and there were net transfers out of the general
fund general fund totaling $327,663. Unreserved fund balance for the general fund was $470,257 or
20% of the total 2007 general fund expenditures.

«  Total revenues from all sources were $1,737,530 for business-type activities for the year ended
December 31, 2007, a decrease of $950,847 (35%) under the year ended December 31, 2006. The
decrease is attributed to reduced activity in capital grants and contributions and slightly fower utility
sales.

« Total expenses were $8,924,344 for governmental activities on the government-wide basis and totai
expenditures were $10,066,642 on the modified accrual basis. The total expenses of business-type
activities were $1,675,425.

« Special assessment bond debt of $1,850,000 was issued to heip finance the costs of the Phase |l
portion of the Flood Mitigation project.

« Beginning net assets of govemnmental activities were increased by $113,348 and beginning fund
hatances of governmental funds were increased $93,200 for a prior period adjustment to write off a
previously accrued CDBG payable determined to not be a liability of the City.

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

This annual financial report consists of a series of statements and related footnotes. These statements are
organized so that the reader can understand the City of Wahpeton as a financial whole, The statements
then proceed to provide an increasingly detailed look at specific financial activities.

The Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities provide information about the activities of the whole
City, presenting both an aggregate view of the City’s finances and a longer-term view of those finances.
Governmental Fund financial statements provide the next level of detail. These statements tell how services
were financed in the short-term as well as what remains for future spending. The fund financial statements
also look at the City’s major funds in separate columns with all other governmental funds presented in total in
one calumn,

This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the hasic financial statements.
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CITY OF WAHPETON
Management's Discussion & Analysis - Continued

REPORTING ON THE CITY AS A WHOLE

Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad cverview of the City
of Wahpeton's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business and to answer the question “How
did the City do financially during the year ended December 31, 20077%

The Statement of Net Assels presents information on aft of the City’s assets and liabilities, with the difference
between the two reported as net assefs. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a

useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Aclivilies presents information on how the City's net assets changed during the most
recent fiscal year. This statement is presented using the accrual basis of accounting, which means that all
changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in the statement
for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (for example, uncoflected sales tax,
and earned but unused vacation leave). Both the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities

present information as follows:

» Governmental activities — this includes most of the City’s basic services which are primarily
supported by property and sales taxes, intergovernmental revenues, user fees and interest income.

o Business-type activities — this includes those services which are intended to recover all or a
significant part of their costs through user fees.

The government-wide financial statements include not only Wahpeton City itself (known as the primary
government), but aiso a legally separate library for which the City is financially accountable. Financial
information for the component unit is reported separately fram the financial information presented for the

primary government iself.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 11-12 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of Wahpeton, like other state and local
governments, uses fund accounting fo ensure and demonstrate comptliance with finance-related legal

requirements.

The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the City’s significant funds — not the City as
awhole. The City's funds can be divided into two categories — governmental funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same funciions reported as governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed
short-term view of the government operations and the basic services it provides, and are reported on the
modified accrual basis of accounting which focuses on available expendable resources. This allows the
reader to evaluate the City’s short-term financing requirements. Because the focus of governmental funds is
narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful to compare the information
presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for governmentat activities in the
government-wide financial statements. By doing 5o, readers may better understand the fong-term impact of
the government's near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the
governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a
reconciliation ‘o facilitate the comparison between the governmental funds and the government-wide

financial statements.

Information is presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the general fund, and the following major funds: capital
improvements, sales tax operating fund, sales tax reserve fund, revolving loan fund, debt service fund and
capital projects fund. Data from the other special revenue governmental funds are combined into a single,
aggregated presentation titled "Other Governmental Funds”.




CITY OF WAHPETON

Management's Discussion & Analysis - Continued

The City of Wahpeton adopts an annual budget for the general fund, sales tax operating fund, sales tax

reserve fund, capital improvements fund and the rev

olving loan fund.

The governmental fund statements may be found on pages 13-14 and 16-17 of this report.

Proprietary Funds - the City of Wahpeton maintains one type of proprietary fun
to report activities that charge for services it provides to outs
presented as business-type activities in the government-wide siatements.
enterprise funds to account for its Water Operations as am
cambined into a single, aggregated presentation titled “Other Enterprise Funds”.
provide the same type of information as the government-wide statements, only in more detail.

The proprietary fund statements may be found on pages 19-21 of this report.

Notes to the Financial Siatements

The noles prov

government-wide and fund financial statements.

pages 22-36 of this report.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY AS A WHOLE

ide customers.

n

d. Enterprise funds are used

The enterprise funds are

The City of Wahpeton uses

ajor fund and the remaining enterprise funds are
Proprietary fund statements

ide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the
The notes to the financial statements can be found on

The following two tables present condensed information on the City's Net Assets and Changes in Net Assets
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007 and 2006. As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as
a useful indicator of the City's financial position. In the case of the City of Wahpeton, assets exceeded
labilities by $14,843,299 at the close of the most recent fiscal year for governmental activities and
$4,862,084 for enterprise business-type activities. The City of Wahpeton's net assets includes its investment
in capital assets (e.g. land, buildings, infrastructure, equipment, and vehicles), less any related debt used to
acquire those assets that are still outstanding. The City of Wahpeton uses these capitai assets to provide
services to its citizens:; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City of

Wahpeton's investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt ($2,043,281), it should be noted
that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets

themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

TABLE 1

NET ASSETS

December 31, 2007 and 2006

2007 2007 2008 2006
Assets: Governmental Business-Type  Governmental  Business-Type
Current Assets $ 9,250,172 $1,161,944 $10,033,593 $1,077,164
Noncurrent Assets 3,929.475 - 4,380,045 -
Capital Assets (net of accum. depreciation) 12,571,545 6,401,367 12,513,274 6,659,179
Total Assets $25,751,192 $7.,563,311 $26,926,912 $7,736,343
Ligbilities:
Current Liabilities $ 1,375,677 $ 215,922 $ 1,255,644 $ 215,898
tong-Term Liabilities 9,532,216 2,485,305 8,694,348 2,672,914
Total Liabilities $10,907,893 32,701,227 $ 9,949,892 $2,888,812
NET ASSETS:
Invested in Capital Assets, net of Related Debt $ 2,043,281 $3,749,630 $ 2,889,521 $3,826,218
Restricted 12,461,321 - 13,253,159 -
Unrestricted 338,697 1,112,454 834,240 1,021,313
Total Net Assets $14,843,268 $4.862,084 $16,976,820 $4,847,531




CITY OF WAHPETON
Management's Discussion & Analysis - Continued

A large portion of the City of Wahpeton's net assets totaling $12,461,321 (84%) represents resources that
are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used (debt service and other special purposes
financed by restricted tax levies). The remaining balance of unrestricted net assets totaling $338,697 (2%)
may be used to meet the government's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. At the end of the 2007,
the City of Wahpeton is able to report positive batances in all three categories of net assets for governmental
activities, as well as boih categories for the business-type activities. Current assets decreased by $783,421
(8%). Capital assets and invested in capital assets, net of related debt both significantly decreased due to
an advance payment of $2,750,000 to the Army Corps of Engineers to proceed with contract awards for the
Phase I Flood Mitigation project; the additional infrastructure will be capitaiized in the 2008 fiscal year.
Current liabilities increased by $120,033 primarily due to debt financing for the Fipod Mitigation Project and a
60 month equipment lease for the acquisition of a 2007 motor grader.

TABLE il
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
As of December 31, 2007 and 2606

2007 2007 2006 2006
Governmental Business-Type Governmental  Business-Type
Revenues Activities Activities Activities Activities
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services $ 666,925 $1,715,549 $ 686,662 $1,833,635
Operating Grants & Contributions 365,947 - 726,378 -
Capital Grants & Contributions 1,337,857 - 346,169 838,638
General Revenues:
Taxes 3,161,216 1,222 3,609,970 -
Siate Aid 473,552 - 349,825 -
Interest Earnings 445,328 20,679 400,781 16,100
Miscellaneous Revenile 178,898 80 288,363 -
Total Revenues $ 6,629,823 $1,737,530 $ 6,408,048 $2,688,377
Expenses
Genera! Government $ 650,557 $ - $ 663,898 5 -
Pubtlic Safety 1,455,861 - 1,164,202 -
Public Works 1,043,084 - 854,529 -
Economic Development 1,040,938 - 707,286 -
Conservation of Natural Resources - - 16,614 -
Culture and Recreation 118,421 - 134,128 -
Other 8,282 - 20,260 -
Capital Outlay 4,216,211 - - -
interest and Fees 390,990 - 379,456 -
Water Operations - 844,138 - 920,522
Sewer, Garbage and Other - 831,287 - 863,792
Total Expenses $ 8,924,344 $1,675,425 $ 4,040,373 $1,784,314
Excess before transfers/special items  $ (2,294,521) $ 62,105 $ 2,367,675 $ 904,063
Transfers 47 552 (47,552) 80,346 {150,700)
Change in Net Assets $ (2,246,969) $ 14,553 $ 2,448,021 $ 753,363
Net Assets — January 1 $16,976,920 $4,847,531 314,671,616 54,102,164
Prior Period Adijustments 113,348 - (142,717) (7,996)
Net Assels — December 31 $14,843,259 54,862,084 $16,976,920 $4,847 531

Property taxes constituted 48%, operating grants and contributions 6%, charges for services 10%,
investment earnings 7%, capital grants and contributions 20%, state aid 7%, and miscellaneous revenue
made up 3% of the total revenues of governmental activities of the City for year ended December 31, 2007.




CITY OF WAHPETON
Management’s Discussion & Analysis - Continued

General government constituted 7%, public safety 16%, public works 12%, economic development 12%,
interest and fees 4%, and the remaining 49% is split among three other categories of total expenses for

governmental activities for the year ended December 31, 2007.

The City of Wahpeton’s total net governmental activities assets equity decreased by 32,246,969 (13%) for
the year ended December 31, 2007. The decrease is due to the issuance of $1,850,000 of bonded
indebtedness for the Flood Mitigation Project Phase |l this project will be capitalized into fixed assets in
fiscal year 2008. The city granted $506,390 to several community recreation projects for improvements at
the NDSCS Stadium & Track, Bois de Sioux Golf Course, Three Rivers Gymnastics and Stearns Areng;
these grants were made from the sales tax reserve fund. Business-type activities net asseis increased by

$14,553 (.03%).

it is noted that governmental activities revenues increased $221,775 and business-type revenues decreased
by $950,847. Causes of the increase in governmental revenues were an increase in capital grants and
contributions for infrastructure totaling $991,788 and an increase in state aid revenues of $123,727. The tax
revenue decrease was due to a decrease in special assessments receivable.  The decrease in business-
type revenues is due to a decrease in capital grants and contributions and a decrease in water gallons
produced and used by customers in the 2007 year compared with 2006 (charges for services decreased by

$118,090).

It is noted that governmental activities expenses increased $4,883,971 (121%) and business-type expenses
decreased by $108,889 {6%). The cause of the increase in governmental expenses was an increase in
capital outlay in 2007 compared with 2006. The decrease in business-type expenses is largely due to
slightly lower sales and diminished variable costs associated with the business type funds.

Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

As noted earlier, the City of Wahpeton uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal resuirements.

Governmental Funds

The focus of the City of Wahpeton's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows,
outflows, and balances of expendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City of
Wahpeton's financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure
of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. As of {he end of the
current fiscal year, the City of Wahpeton's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of
$8,686,231. The total unreserved fund balances are $5,396,626. The remainder of fund balance is reserved
to indicate that it is not available for new spending because it has already been committed to pay debt
service $1,963,212 related to capital improvements, and is reserved for inventories $21,704 and loans
$1,304,689. Total fund balances of governmentai funds decreased by $973,360 primarily due to significant
disbursements from the sales tax set aside for recreation and open construction project funds pending
bonding related to the development of infrastructure to serve a Wal-Mart Super Center which opened on

August 8", 2007.

It is noted ihat total revenues for governmental funds increased $1,341,232 (23%) for the year ended
December 31, 2007 going from $5,727,869 to $7, 069,101. The primary cause of the revenue increase was
a $1,337,957 cost share cash reimbursement from the ND State Water Commission for expenses related to
the Flood Mitigation Phase I project. Expenditures increased $4,291,490 (74%) from $5,775,152 to
$10,066,642. Sales Tax Reserve — Rec Set Aside expenditures increased by $499,916 with several grants
to community recreation projects. Capital Projects expenditures increased 33,804,217 (895%) with 7 open

infrastructure construction projects on Dec. 31, 2007,

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City of Wahpeton. At the end of the current fiscal year,
unreserved fund halance of the general fund was $470,257. Unreserved fund balance represents 20% of
total general fund expenditures. Revenues of the general fund totaled $2,394,200 and expenditures totaled
$2,403,051 for the year ended December 31, 2007. Revenues of the general fund increased by $50,238
(2%) and expenditures increased by $232,754 (11%). Of the increase in revenues, $47,212 is represented

by an increase in taxes collected.




CITY OF WAHPETON
Management's Discussion & Analysis - Continued

The fund balance of the City of Wahpeton's general fund increased by $2,543 (.54%) during the current fiscal
year.

The sales tax operating fund balance increased by $285,455 (24%) partIY due to increased revenues of
$89,448 (19%) attributed to the new sales tax collections generated in the 4 " quarter by the Wal-Mart Super
center. The sales tax reserve fund balance decreased $260,298 {18%) due to funding of community
recreation projects totaling $593,380. The capital improvements fund balance decreased by 52,127 (.30%)
due to expenditures slightly exceeding revenues. The revolving loan fund balance decreased $38,132 (3%)
due to continuation of an affordable housing program to build spec homes on city owned lots, at year end 2
houses were under construction. The debt service fund balance decreased by $70,911 {4%) due to debt
retirement costs exceeding tax revenue collected. The capital projects fund balance decreased by
$1,138,663 (235%) due to 7 open infrastructure projects that are works in progress, pending debt issuance.
The other government funds balance increased $248,773 (14%) atiributed to lower capital cutlay expenses.

Proprietary Funds

The City of Wahpeton's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide
financial statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net assets of the Water Operating Fund totaled $685,721. Total increase in net assets for this
fund was $62.321. Water sales and expenses tracked consistently maintaining fund balance.

General Fund Budgetary Highlighis

Differences between the original budget and the final amended budget for the City's general operating fund
was a relatively minor, the variance with final budget is $27,832 (1%) increase in expenditures and an
increase in revenue of $142,215 (6%). Transfers in were increased by $82,431 and transfers out were
decreased by $159,163 in the variance with Final Budget. The general fund budget was amended {o actual
amounts for the year ended December 31, 2007, as were the special revenue and debt service funds.

CAPITAL ASSET ADMINISTRATION

The City of Wahpeton’s investment in capital assets for its governmental activities as of December 31, 2007
amounted to $12,571,545 (net of accumulated depreciation), representing an increase of $58,271 (.5%)
increase due to the addition of land associated with the Flood Mitigation Project. The change in business-
type activities capital assels was a net decrease of $257,812 (4%) due to slightly lower sales and increased
accumulated depreciation. This investment in capital assets includes land, infrastructure, buildings,
equipment and vehicles. There were no major capitai asset events during the year ended December 31,

2007,

TABLE Hi
CAPITAL ASSETS
(Net of Accumulated Depreciation)
December 31, 2007 and 2006

2007 2007 2006 20086
Governmental Business-Type Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Activities Activities
Land $ 435,678 $ - $ 243,911 $ -
Buildings 1,869,388 1,673,545 1,899,856 1,719,884
Equipment 2,186,875 1,152,509 2,107,880 1,270,069
Vehicles 125,604 14,375 117,746 19,939
Infrastructure 7,954,000 3,560,938 8,143,881 3,640,287
Total Capital Assets $12,571,545 $6,401,367 $12,513,274 36,659,179

Additional information on the City of Wahpeton's capital assets can be found in note 9 of this report found on
pages 28-30.




CITY OF WAHPETON
Management's Discussion & Analysis - Continued

DEBT ADMINISTRATION

At year-end the City had total long-term gebt for governmental activities totaling $10,528,264, a net overall
increase of $804,511 (9%) over the prior year. The increase was caused by normal scheduled debt
payments on existing debt combined with the issuance of $1,850,000 in speciat assessment bonds for the
Flood Mitigation Phase 1l project. Business-type activities fong-term debt decreased by $181,224 (6%) going
from $2,832,961 to $2,651,737. The decrease was due solely to scheduled debt payments.

TABLE IV
OUTSTANDING LONG-TERM DEBT
As of December 31, 2007 and 2006

Total Due Total Due
Outstanding Within Cutstanding Within
Dac. 31, 2007 One Year Dec. 31, 2008 One Year
Governmental Aclivities:
Special Assessment Bonds Payable  $10,271%,629 $ 961,348 § 9,401,405 $ 929,776
Loans Payable 113,853 113,853 222,348 108,493
Leases Payable 142,782 27,145 - -
Total Governmental Activities $10,528,264 $1,102,346 & 9,623,753 $1,038,269
Business-Type Aclivities:
Revenue Bonds Payable $ 2,651,737 $ 188,225 § 2,832,961 $ 181,225
Total Long-Term Debt $13,180,001 $1,290,571 $12,456,714 $1,219,494

Note 12 to the financial statements describes the City’s long-term debt in greater detail and is found on
pages 31-33 of this report.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES

The 2007 budget included a mill levy increase/decrease of 1.47 mills going from 117.94 to 116.47. The
value of a mill for the City for the 2007 budget increased from $12,339 to $12,890 per miil.

Total appropriations for operations for 2007 decreased by approximately $898,564 from 2006 levels. The
decrease is caused primarily by omitted appropriations for the RLF and capital project funds totaling
$882,443 in 2006 and $0 in 2007 as part of an administrative oversight in the appropriations process. Total
appropriations for operations for 2008 increased by approximately $1,679,600 from 2007 levels. The 33%
increase is primarily caused by appropriations in the sales tax reserve major fund for the Community Center

project.
CONTACTING THE CITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s finances and to demonstrate the
City's accountability for the money it receives to the citizens of Wahpeton. if you have any questions about
this report or need further information, contact the City of Wahpeton Finance Director, Darcie Huwe, 1900 4"
Street North, Wahpeton, ND 58075, phone 701-642-8448, fax 701-642-1428, email darcieh@wahpeton.com,

or visit us online at http://www.wahpeton.com.
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CITY OF WAHPETON
Wahpeton, North Dakota

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

December 31, 2007

ASSETS
Cash, cash eguivalents, and investments
Utility billings receivable
Accounts recelvable
Intergovernmenta! receivable
Taxes receivable
Special assessments receivable
Loans receivable
Inventories
Long-term receivabie:

Uncertified special assessments receivable
Capital assets:

Land

Buildings

Equipment

Vehicles

Infrasiructure

Total Capital Assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Accrued payroll benefits

CDBG loan payable

Accrued interest payable

Leng-term liabilities:

Portion due or payable within one year:
Leases payable
Loans payable
Special assessment bonds payable
Revenue honds payable

Portion due or payable after one year:
ieases payable
Special assessment bonds payable
Revenue bonds payable
Compensated absences payable

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS
Invested in Capitat Assets, net of related debt
Restricted for:
Debt service
Publlc safety
Public warks
Economicfiob development
Cuiture and recreation
Conservation of natural resources
Canital improvements
Unrestricted
Total Net Assets

Component
Primary Government Unit
Governmental  Business-type
Activities Activities Total Library
§ 7,238239 § 1022795 $ 8261034 § 55262
- 139,149 139,149 -
55,005 - 55,005 -
281,139 - 281,139 -
162,968 - 162,958 8,426
185,928 - 185,928 -
1,305,189 - 1,305,189 -
21,704 - 21,704 -
3,929,475 - 3,028,475 -
435,678 - 435,678 -
1,869,388 1,673,545 3,542,833 -
2,186,875 1,152,509 3,330,384 5,583
125,603 14,375 139,978 -
7,954,001 3,560,038 11,514,939 -
$ 12571545 § 6,401,367 $18972912 § 5583
§ 25751,192 § 7,663,311  §33,314503 § 69,271
$ 58,777 % 6,447 $ 66,224 § -
50,268 - 50,268 -
105,000 - 105,000 -
58,286 21,250 79,536 -
27,145 - 27,145 -
113,853 - 113,853 -
961,348 - 961,348 -
- 188,225 188,225 -
115,637 - 115,637 -
9,310,281 - 9,310,281 -
- 2,463,512 2,463,512 -
106,208 21,793 128,091 1,675
% 10,907,893 $ 2,701,227 §13,609120 § 1,675
$ 2043281 $ 3,748,630 § 5792911 % 5583
6,095,274 - 6,095,274 -
139,787 - 139,787 -
176,998 - 176,998 -
5,188,388 - 5,188,388 -
624 - 624 62,013
821,180 - 821,190 -
39,080 - 39,060 -
338,697 1,112,454 1,451,151 -
$ 14843299 $ 4,862,084 $19705383 § 67,506

The noies to the financial statements are an integral part of this financial statement.

11




CITY OF WAHPETON
Wahpeton, North Dakota

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended December 31, 2007

Program Revenues

Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net Assets

Fees, Fines, Operating Capital Business- Cornponent
and Charges Grantsand  Grants and Governmental Type Unit
Functions/Pregrams Expenses for Services  Confributions Coniributions Activities Activities Total Library
Primary Government:
Governmental Aclivities:
General govermnment % B30,557 § 447,254 § - 3 - § {203,303 $ (203,303)
Public safety 1,455,861 219,383 21,811 - (1,214,557) (1,214,557}
Public works 1,043,084 278 341,786 1,337,957 636,937 636,937
Culture and recreation 118,421 - - - {118,421} {118,421}
Fconomic development 1,040,938 - 2,250 ~ {1,038,688) (1,038,688)
Other 8,282 - - - (8,282) (8,282)
Capital outlay 4,216,211 - - - {4,216,211) {4,216,211)
Interest & fees on iong-tarm debt 390,990 - - - {390,590} (380,890)
Total Governmental Activities $ 8024344 § G6BB,925 § 365047 8 1,337,957 % (6,553,515) 5 {6,553,515)
Business-Type Activities:
Water operations $ 844138 § 995529 3§ - % - $ - % 151,391 & 151,391
Sewer, garbage & other 831,287 720,020 - - - (111,267) {111,267)
Total Business-Type Activities $ 1675425 § 1715548 § - % - $ - % 40,124 % 40,124
Totai Primary Government $10599,760 § 2382474 § 365947 § 1,337,057 §(6,553,515) & 40,124 § (6,513,391}
Component Unit:
Library $ 206597 5 7,299 % 30,807 % - 3 (168,491)
General Revenues,
Taxes:
Praperty taxes, levied for general purposes § 717574 % -~ & 717574 § 172725
Property taxes, levied for special purposes 698,693 - 588,693 -
Special assmt. and property taxes, levied for debt service 497,599 - 497,599 -
Sales taxes 1,247,350 - 1,247,350 -
State aid distribution 473,552 - 473,552 9,629
Unrestricted investment eamings 445,328 - 445,328 -
Miscellaneous 199,462 21,981 221,443 .
Bond discount (20,564) - {20,564) -
Transfers 47,552 (47,552) - -
Total General Revenues and Transfers $ 4306546 § {25571 § 4280975 § 182,354
Changes in Net Assets $ (2,246,969 $ 14,553 $(2,232416) 3 13,863
Net Assets - January 1 $ 16,976,920 $ 4,847,531 $21,824,451 § 53,733
Pricr Period Adjustmentis 113,348 - 113,348 -
Net Assets - January 1, as restated $17,090,268 $ 4,847,531 §$21,937,798 B 53733
Net Assets - Decernber 31 $14,843200 $ 4862084 $19705383 § 67,586

The netes to the financial statements are an integral part of this financial statement.
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CITY OF WAHPETON
Wahpeton, North Dakota

BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMERNTAL FUNDS

December 31, 2007

ASSETS
Cash, cash equivalents, and investments
Accounts receivable
Intergovernmental receivable
Due from other funds
l.oans receivable
Taxes receivable
Special assessments receivable
Inventory

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Lighilifies:

Accounts payable

Accrued payrolt benefits

Grant Match Payable

Due to cther funds

Deferred revenue

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:
Reserved for Debt Service
Reserved for nventories
Reservad for Loans
Unreserved, reported in:
General fund
Special revenue funds
Capital projects funds

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

Major Funds

Debt

General Capital Sales Tax Sales Tax Revolving Service

Fund improvements  Operating Reserve Loan Fund Fund
$ 377,782 % 750,806 % 742,862 5 1,296,750 § ;}’70,127 § 1,963,212
48,278 - - - - -
150,524 - 51,194 25,597 - -
- - 699,500 - 595,483 -
42,996 - - - - 71,673
- - - - - 185,928
$ 519,580 % 769,096 § 1,403,556 $ 1,322357 § 1365610 % 2,220,813
$ 56,059 & - 3 - % - % - 8 -
50,268 - - - - -
- - - 104,5C0 500 -
42,896 - - - - 257,601
$ 148,323 § - 5 - 5 104,500 8§ 500 § 257,801
§ - % - 3 - § - 8 - § 1,963,212
- - 699,500 - 584,983 -
470,257 - - - - .
- 769,996 794,056 1,217,857 770,127 -
$ 470257 § 765,996 $ 1,493,556 § 1,217,857 § 1365110 % 1,963,212
$ 619580 3 760,006 § 1,493,556 & 1,322357 $ 1365610 § 2220813

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this financial statement.
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Capitai Other Total
Prajects Governmentat  Governmenial
Fund Funds Funds
- % 1,317,500 § 7,238,239
- 8,727 55,005
51,194 2,630 281,139
- 704,971 704,971
- 10,208 1,305,188
- 48,299 162,968
- - 185,028
- 21,704 21,704
51,194 § 2112037 § 9955143
- 8 3,718 & 59,777
- - 50,268
- - 105,000
704,971 - 704,971
- 48,299 348,896
704971 § 52,017 § 1,268,912
- § - § 1,863,212
- 21,704 21,704
- 10,208 1,304,889
- - 470,257
- 2,028,110 5,580,146
(653,777) - {653,777)
(B53,777) § 2,060.020 § 8,686,231
51184 § 2142037 § 9655143
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CiTY OF WAHPETON
Wahpeton, North Dakota

RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
December 31, 2007

Total Fund Balances of Governmental Funds $ 8,686,231

Total net assets reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets
is different because:

Capital assets usad in governmental activities are not financial resources and
are not reported in the governmental funds.

$ 16,711,857

Cost of Capital Assets
(4,140,412}

Less Accumulated Depreciation

Net Capital Assets 12,571,545

Property taxes & special assessments receivable will be collected after year-end,
but are not available soon enough to pay for the current period's expenditures and
therefore are reported as deferred revenues in the funds.

3 162,968

Taxes Receivable
4,115,403 4,278,371

Special Assessments Receivable

Long-term uncertified special assessments receivable are not reported in the funds
haecause they are unavailable to pay the current period's expenditures.

Long-term liabilities applicable to the City's governmental activities are not due and
payable in the current period and accordingly are not reported as fund liabilities.
interest on long-term debt is not accrued in governmental funds, but rather is
recognized as an expenditure when due. Al liabiiities-both current and long-term
are reported in the statement of net assets. Balances at December 31 are made

up of the following liabilities:

Special Assessment Bonds Payable $ (10,271,629}

Leases Payable (142,782)
Loans Payable (113,853)
(58,288)

interest Payable
Compensated Absences Payable (106,298)

Total Long-Term Liabilities {10,692,848)

Total Net Assets - Governmental Activities 5 14,843,299

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this financial statement.
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CITY OF WAHPETON
Wahpeton, North Dakota

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2007

Revenues:

Taxes

Sales taxes

Special assessmeant taxes
Licenses, permits and fees
Fines and forfeits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Loan receivable receipts
interest income
Miscellaneous

Tolal Revenues

Expendituras:
Current:

General government
Public safety
Public works / highways & streets
Cuiture and recreation
Economic development
Other

Debt Service:
Principal
interest
Fees

Capital outlay

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (UJses):
Transfers in

Bond proceeds

Capital Lease Proceeds

Bond discount

Transfers out

Total Cther Financing Sources
and Uses

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances - January 1
Priar Period Adjustments

Fund Balance - January 1, as resiated

Fund Balances - December 31

Major Funds

Debt Capital

General Capltal Sales Tax Saies Tax Revalving Service Projects

Fund Improvements  Operaling Reserve Loan Fund Funds Funds
§ 732374 % - ¥ - % - % - § - % -
- - 488,940 249,470 - - 498,840
- - - - - 935,871 -
426,684 - - - - - -
197,916 - - - - - “
793,484 4,238 - - - - 1,337,957
18,880 - - - - - -
- - - - 8,275 - -
214,073 34,803 53,028 79,122 43,907 - 3,700
10,789 3,154 8,389 4,500 127,646 - -
$2384200 & 42185 $§ 560,357 § 333,092 § 170,828 & 935871 § 1,840,587
$ 500092 § 5300 % - 3 - 8 $ -5 -
1,300,582 34,283 - - - - -
475,874 338,837 - - - - -
118,421 - - - .- - -
- - 122,139 506,390 249,860 - -
8,282 - - - - - -
- 4,412 - - - 1,088,270 -
- 1.054 - - 380,200 -
- 180 - - - 5,607 12,888
- - - - - - 4,216,211
$2403051 & 384076 § 122,139 & 506,390 § 240960 § 1474077 § 4,229,077
$ (8,851) § (341,881) $ 438218 § (173,208) § (70,132) § (538,206} § (2,388.480)
% 339,057 % 192561 § - % - § 32000 § 605129 § -
- - - - - 1,850,000
- 147,193 - - - - -
- - - - - - {20,564)
(327,663) - {152,763) {87.000) - (137,834} (579,619
$ 11394 $ 339754 § (152,763) § (87,000) § 32000 $ 467295 § 1249817
] 2,643 & (2,127) § 285455 § (260298) $§ (38132} § {70,811) $ {1,138,663)
$ 487,714 § 772,123 § 1,208,101 51478155 § 1,310,042 §2,034,123 § 484,838
- - - - 93,200 - -
$ 467,714 % 772,123 $1,208,101 § 1,478,155 § 1403242 $2034,123 § 484,886
$ 470257 § 769886 $1483556 "§1217.857 $ 1365110 $ 1963212 § (683777

The notes to the financial statements are an integrat part of this financial statement.
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Other Total
Governimental Governmental
Funds Funds
$ 664335 $ 1,396,709

- 1,247,350

- 935,871

- 426,684

- 197,916

41,777 2,177,456
23,445 42,325

- 8,275

16,695 445,328
36,709 181,187

§ 782,861 $ 7,069,101
$ 318642 & 824,034
50,715 1,385,580
165,938 980,448

- 118,421

162,577 1,041,066

- 8,282

- 1,082,682

- 381,254

- 18,663

- 4,216,211

$ 687,872 § 10,066,642
$ 85089 § (2,997.541)
$ 379,187 § 1,547,834
- 1,854,000

- 147,183

- (20,564)
(215,503) {1,500,382)

$ 163,884 § 2024181
$ 248773 $ (873,360)

$ 1,811,247 % 9,566,381
- 93,200

$ 1,811,247  $ 9,659,501

$ 20680020 § 8686231
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CITY OF WAHPETON
Wahpeton, North Dakcta

RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FIUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES iN FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended December 31, 2007

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds $  {973,380)
The change in net assets reported for governmental activities in the statement of
activities is different because:
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement
of activities, the cost of those asseis is allocated over their estimated useful lives and
reportad as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded
depreciation in the current year.

Capital Asset Additions § 548,103

Current Year Depreciation Expense (484 ,240) 63,863
In the Statement of Activities, the loss or gain on sale or disposal of capital assets
is recognized. The fund financial staternents recognize only the proceeds from
these sales.

Loss on Disposals of Capital Assets {25,740}
Repayment reduces long-term fiahilities in the statement of net assets, while the
issuance of debt increases long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets,
This is the amount by which debt repayment exceeded the issuance of debt.

Repayment of Debt $ 1,092,582

issuance of Debt and Capital Leases (1,897,183) (904,511)
Coilecticns on uncertified special assessments is a revenue in the governmental
funds, but the collection reduces the long-term receivabie in the statement of net
assets. This is the amount of receivable collection.

Collection on Long-Term Receivable (450,57C}
Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not reguire the use of current
financial resources and are not reported as expendifures in governmental funds.

Net Decrease in Compensated Absences b 2,566

Net Decrease in Interest Payable 8,927 11,493
Some revenues reported on the statermnent of activities are not repoited as revenues
in the governmental funds since they do not represent available resources to pay
current expenditures. This consists of the increase in taxes and special
assessments raceivable.

Net Increase in Taxes Receivable 3 19,558

Net Increase in Special Assessments Receivable 12,298 31,858
Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities $ (2,246,969)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this financial statement.
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CITY OF WAHPETON
Wahpeton, North Dakota

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
December 31, 2007

Business-lype Activities - Enterprise Funds

Other
Water Enterprise
Operating Funds Total
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash 5 658,527 3 364,268 1,022,795
Utility billings receivable 66,262 72,887 138,149
Noncurrent Asseis:
Capital assets:
Buildings 1,614,380 58,165 1,673,545
Equipment 392,756 759,753 1,152,509
Vehicles - 14,375 14,375
Infrastructure 1,349,983 2,210,945 3,560,938
Tolal capital assets $ 3,357,129 $ 3,044,238 8,401,367
Total Assets 3 4,081,918 $ 3,481,393 7,563,311
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable - 5,716 $ 731 6,447
Accrued interest payable 18,502 2,748 21,250
Revenue bonds payable 163,000 25,225 188,225
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Revenue bond payable 2,160,366 303,146 2,463,512
Compensated absences 14,850 6,943 21,793
Total Liabilities $ 2,362,434 $ 338,793 2,701,227
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $ 1,033,763 $ 2715867 3,749,630
Unrestricted 685,721 426,733 1,112,454
Total Net Assets $ 1,719,484 5 3,142,600 4,862,084

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this financial statement.
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CITY OF WAHPETON
Wahpeton, North Dakota

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES N FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2007

Operating Revenues:
Charges for sales and services:
Water operations

Operating Expenses:
Salaries and wages

Benefits
Heating fuel, gas and oit
Utilities - eleciricity and telephone
Service contracts
Supplies and postage
Repairs and maintenance
Equipment/Lift Station Maintenance
Equipment
Insurance
Chemicals
Professional fees and other service charges
Metersihydrantsfwells/lagoons
Wells
Audit fees
Schools/iraining
Uncollectible
Memberships
Miscellaneous
Processing fees
Worker's compensation
Degreciation
Total Operating Expenses

Qperating Income

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Payments {o contractors-construction
Property taxes
interest expense
Service charges and administration fees
Miscellaneous

Total Nonoperaling Revenue {(Expenses)

Income Before Contributions and Transfers

Transfers in
Transfers out

Change in Net Assets

Total Net Assets - January 1
Prior Period Adjusiments

Total Net Assets - January 1, as restated

Total Net Assets - December 31

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Other

Water Enterprise Enterprise

Operating Funds Total
§ 995528 § 720,020 $ 1,715,548
§ 212,087 § 0 122,289 § 334,386
61,402 38,231 97,633
14,995 2,449 17 444
50,863 136,163 189,026
14,820 208,532 223,382
7,329 17,745 25,074
15,499 37,223 52,722
27,848 45,629 73477
8,330 3,506 11,836
14,269 4,197 18,466
133,380 13,622 147,002
3,020 11,033 14,053
45872 3,040 48,712
7.076 - 7,076
2,666 2,667 5,333
1,665 965 2,830
- 6,225 6,225
407 - 407
5,199 3,993 9,192
2,800 2,906 5,800
5,154 1,507 6,661
136,737 158,394 296,131
$ 771,318 §  g21.320 $ 1,592,638
$ 224211 $  {101,300) 5 122911
$ 80 L - $ 80
1,222 - 1,222
{60,808) (8,287) {69,095)
{12,012) (1,680) {13,692)
20,104 575 20,679
$ {51,414) $ (8,392) $ (60,808)
§ 172,797 $  {110.692) $ 62,105
3 1,524 $ 62,924 $ 64,448
{112,000) - {112,000)
5 62,321 3 (47,768) 3 14,583
$ 1,701,837 5 3,145,694 $ 4,847,531
{44,674) 44,674 -
$ 1,857,163 § 3,190,368 $ 484753
§ 1,719,484 $ 3142600 % 4862084

The notes o the financial statements are an integral part of this financial statement.




CITY OF WAHPETON
Wahpeton, North Dakota

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2007

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Receipts from customers

Payments o suppliers

Payments to employees

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Aclivities:
Praperty taxes

Trangfers in

Transfers out

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Noncapital Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Purchases and construction of capital assets

Payments to contractors

Miscellaneous income

Principal paid on capital dabt

Interest paid on capital debt

Net Cash (Used) by Capital and Related Financing Activities
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Januagy 1

Cash and Cash Equivalents, December 31

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Qperating income
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation expense
Change in assets and Habilities:
Utility billings receivable
Loans receivable
Accounts payable
Compsensated absences

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Other Totai

Water Enterprise Enterprise
Fund Funds Funds
$ 1,627,009 § 715,376 § 1,742,385
(360,294) {508,765) (B70,058)
(273,626) {157,778) {431,404)
§ 393,084 § 47833 $§ 440922
§ 1,222 5 - $ 1,222
1,524 62,924 64,448
(112,000) - (112,000)
$ (109,254) 3 82924 ) {45,330)
3 {38,320) 3 - B (38,320)
80 - 80
20,104 575 20,679
{156,000) (25,225) (181,225)
(74,023) (10,169) (84,192)
$ (248,159) 3 (34819) $  (282,978)
5 35,676 $ 75638 $ 111,614
$ 622851 $ 288,330 $ 911,181
$ 658527 $ 364,268 § 1,022,795
$ 224211 $ (101,300) $ 122,911
136,737 159,394 296,131
31,479 (4,670) 26,808

- 25 25
789 (6,368) (5,569)

{137) 752 615

§ 393,089 $ 47833 $ 440922

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this financial statement.
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CITY OF WAHPETON
Wahpeton, North Dakota

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2007

NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIC%ESJ

The City of Wahpeton, North Dakota operates under a Home Rule Charter adopted in 1288.
The financial statements of the city have been prepared in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP} as applied to
government units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted
standard sefting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting
principles. The more significant of the government's accounting policies are described below.

A. Financial Reporting Entity

The accompanying financial statements present the activities of the City of Wahpeton. The
city has considered all potential component units for which the city is financiaily accouniable
and other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationships with the city
are such that exclusion would cause the city's financial statements to be misleading or
incomplete. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board has set forth criteria to be
considered in determining financial accountability. This criteria includes appointing a voting
majority of an organization’s governing body and (1) the ability of the City of Wahpeton to
impose its will on that organization or (2) the potential for the organization to provide specific
financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on the City of Wahpeton.

gased on these criteria, the component unit discussed below is included within the city's
reporting entity because of the significance of its operational or financial relationships with the

city.

COMPONENT UNITS

In conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
the financial statements of component unit have been inciuded in the financial reporting entity
as a discretely presented component unit.

Discretely Presented Component Unit - The component unit columns in the government-wide
financial statements include the financial data of the city's component unit. This unit is
reported in separate columns o emphasize that it is legally separate from the city.

Leach Public Library - The City's governing board appoints a voting majority of the members
of the Library's Board. The city has the authority to approve or modify the Library's
operational and capital budgets. The city also must approve the tax levy established by the
Library. Complete financial staternents for the library can be obtained at Leach Public Library,
417 Second Avenue North, Wahpeton, ND 58075. The library is reported as a governmental

fund type.

Blended Component Unit: Blended component units, although iegally separate entities, are,

in substance, part of the government’s operations and so data from these units are combined
with data of the primary government.
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CITY OF WARPETON
Notes to the Financial Statements - Continued

City of Wahpeton Econornic Development Commission / Job Develepment Authority — The
City of Wahpeton Economic Development Commission governing hoard consists of two City
Councii members and five additional members appointed by the City Council. The Economic
Development Commission is reported as if it were part of the city's operations. The Economic
Development Commission activity is reported in various special revenue funds, some of which

are major funds.

RELATED ORGANIZATIONS

The city is accountable for the following legally separate entity because it appoints a voting
majority to its governing board. Although, the city is not financially accountable for this entity,
as defined by GASB Statement 14, the city did provide operating grants to it as follows:

[Aiport | $53.408 |

The City of Wahpeton is accountable for the Bois de Sioux Golf Club, a legally separate entity
because it appoints a voting majority o its governing board. The city also owns the land used
by the golf club. The city cannot and does not control the operations of the club.

B. Basis of Presentation

Governmeni-wide siatements: The statement of net assets and the statement of activilies
display information about the primary government, the City of Wahpeton and its component
unit. These statements include the financial activities of the overall government, except for
fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double-counting of internal
activities. These statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type
activities of the City. Governmental activities generafly are financed through taxes,
intergovernmentai revenues, anc other nonexchange transactions. Business-type activities
are financed in whale or in part by fees charged to external parties.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program
revenues for each function of the City’s governmental activities. Direct expenses are those
that are specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly
identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include {a) fees, fines and charges
paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and (b} grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a
particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, inciuding all taxes

and interest, are presented as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the city's
funds including its fiduciary funds and blended component unit. Separate statements for each
fund category-governmental, proprietary and fiduciary-are presented. The emphasis of fund
financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a
separate column. All remaining governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and

reported as nonmajor funds.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange
transactions associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are
those in which each party receives and gives up essentially equal values. Nonoperating
revenues, such as subsidies and investment earnings, result frem nonexchange transactions

or ancillary activities.
The city reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund. This is the city’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources
of the general government, except those required {o be accounied for in another fund.
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Sales Tax Operating Fund. This fund accounts for the use of cily sales tax for various
purposes within the city, primarily to make capital improvements and to make economic

development granis and loans.

Sales Tax Reserve Fund. This fund accounts for the use of the city sales tax set aside for
recreation purposes.

Capital Improvements Fund. This fund accounts for the accumulation of funds for various
capital improvements to city properties.

Revolving Loan Fund. This fund accounts for the use of the money set aside for various
types of economic development loans.

Debt Service Funds. Debt service funds are used to account for the accumulation of
resources for, and the payment of, long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs.

Capital Projects Funds. Capital projects funds are used to account for financial resources,
inciuding special assessments, to be used for the acquisition or construction of major capital
facilities, (other than those financed by proprietary funds and trust funds).

The City reports the foliowing major enterprise “fund™

Water Operating Fund. This fund accounts for the activities of the Water Department. This
department operates the water distribution system to citizens in the City of Wahpston.

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting

Government-wide, Proprietary, and Fiduciary Fund Financiai Statements. The government-
wide, proprietary, and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the economic
resources measurement focus. The government-wide and proprietary fund financial
statements are reported using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when
earned and expenses are recorded at the time fabilities are incurred, regardiess of when the
related cash flows take place. Nonexchange transactions, in which the City gives (or
receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, include property
taxes, grants, entitlements and donations. On an accruzl basis, revenue from property taxes
is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants,
entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements

have been satisfied.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements. Governmental funds are reported using the
current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Under this method, revenues are recognized when measurable and available. The City
considers all revenues reported in the governmental funds to be available if the revenues are
collected within sixty days after year-end. Special assessments, intergovernmental revenues,
charges for services and investment income are considered susceptible to accrual.
Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and
interest on general long-term debt, claims and judgments, and compensated absences, which
are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured. General capital asset
acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of long-term debt
and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources.

Under the terms of grant agreements, the City funds certain programs by a combination of
specific cost-reimbursement grants and general revenues. Thus, when program expenses
are incurred, there are both restricted and unrestricted net assets available to finance the
program. I is the City’s policy to first apply cost-reimbursement grant resources fo such

programs, and then by general revenues.
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Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1,
1989, generally are followed in both government-wide and proprietary fund financial
statements o the extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board. Geovemnments also have the option of following
subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds,
subject to this same limitation. The government has elected not fo follow subsequent private-

sector guidance.

When bath restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the city's pelicy to
use restricied resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

D. Cash. Cash Equivalents and Investments

Cash and cash equivalents include amounts in demand deposits and money market
accounts.

investments consist of certificates of deposit, with a maturity date in excess of 90 days, stated
at cost.

E. Inventories

Inventories are valued at cost using the first-inffirst-out (FiIFO} method.

F. Capital Assels

Capital assets include property, plant and equipment. Capital Assels are reported in the
governmental activities and business-type activities columns of the government-wide financial
statements.  Additionally, capital assets and capital asset activity are reported in the
applicable proprietary statements of net assets and revenues, expenses and changes in
proprietary net assets. Capital assets are defined by the City as assels with an initial,
individual cost of $5,000 or more with useful lives of greater than one fiscal year. Such assets
are recorded at cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. General
infrastructure assets are reported for that acquired and constructed after July 1, 1980 and are
reported at historical cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value
at the date of donation. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the
value of the asset or materially extend assets lives are not capitalized. Major outiays for
capital assets and improvements are capitalized as infrastructure projects are constructed.
Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets is not capitalized in the

governmental funds.

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight line method of the following estimated usefu!

fives:
Governmental and Business-type Activities: ’ Years
Buildings 50
Equipment 15
Office Eguipment 3
Vehicles b
infrastructure 10 - 50

G. Compensated Absences

Full-time and permanent part-time employees are granted vacation benefits at a specified rate
per calendar month of full-time service. Other part-time, hourly, temporary and seasonal
employees are excluded from earning vacation. Beginning with a new policy approved
November 15, 2004, full-time employees earn sick leave benefits at the rate of one working
day per month. Part-time and hourly employees do not earn sick leave benefits. Permanent
part-time employees earn sick leave benefits at the rate of ¥z working day per month.
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Four separate computations and credit wili be utilized in determining the vacation hours
credited each pay period based on longevity.

Police QOfficers and Sergeants;

Years of Service Maximum Hours Credited
Introductory Period 20
Six Month Anniversary 40
1st day of 7th month - 1 year 170
1st day of 2nd year - 3rd year 225
1st day of 4th year - 5th year 280
1st day of 6th year - 19th year 335
1st day of 20th year and after 385

Water Plant Personnel:

Years of Service Maximum Hours Credited
Introductory Period 20
Six Month Anniversary 40
1st day of 7th month - 1 year 150
1st day of 2nd year - 3rd year 200
1st day of 4th year - 5th year 250
15t day of 6th year - 18th year 360
1st day of 20th year and after 330

Other Full-Time City Employees:

Years of Service Maximum Hours Credited
Introductory Period 20
Six Month Anniversary 40
1st day of 7th month - 1 year 50
15t day of 2nd year - 3rd year 100
1st day of 4th year - 5th year 150
1st day of 6th year - 19th year 200
1st day of 20th year and after 250

Permanent Part-Time City Employees:

Years of Service Maximum Hours Credited
Introductory Period 10
Six Month Anniversary 20
1st day of 7th month — 1 year 50
1st day of 2nd year - 5th year 100
1st day of 6th year and after 150

It is the library's policy to follow the all other full-time City employee policy regarding
compensated absences.

H. Fund Balances

Reserves represent those portions of fund bafances not appropriable for expenditure or
legally segregated for a specific future use.
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LEGAL COMPLIANCE - BUDGETS {

NOTE 2:
Budget Amendments - Expenditures;
The city's governing board approved budget amendmenis for aff governmental funds io
amend fund budgets to actual amounts for revenues, expenditures, transfers in and transfers
out. Below are the expenditure and transfer out budget amendments for the governmental
funds.
EXPENDITURES/TRANSFERS OUT
Original Amended
Budget Amendment Budget
Major Funds:;
General Fund $2,508,611 $172,818 $2,681,430
Debt Service Funds {select) 392,088 1,104 393,192
Special Levy Non-Major Funds 41,609 48,409 90,018
[NOTE3: DEPOSITS |

in accordance with North Dakota Statutes, the city maintains deposiis at the depository banks
designated by the governing board. All depositories are members of the Federal Reserve

System.

Deposits must either be deposited with the Bank of North Dakota or in other financial
institution situated and doing business within the state. Deposits, other than with the Bank of
North Dakota, must be fully insured or bonded. Deposits, other than with the Bank of North
Dakota, must be fully insured or bonded. In lieu of a bond, a financial institution may provide a
pledge of securities equal to 110% of the deposits not covered by insurance or bonds.

Authorized coliateral includes bills, notes, or bonds issued by the Uniled States government,
its agencies or instrumentalities, all bonds and notes guaranteed by the Uniled States
government, Federal land bank bonds, bonds, notes, warrants, certificates of indebtedness,
insured certificates of deposit, shares of investment companies registered under the
Investment Companies Act of 1940, and all other forms of securities issued by the State of
North Dakota, its boards, agencies or instrumentalities or by any county, city, township, schoof
district, park district, or other political subdivision of the state of North Dakota whether payable
from special revenues or supported by the full faith and credit of the issuing body and bonds
issued by an other state of the United States or such other securities approved by the banking

board.

At year ended December 31, 2007, the city's carrying amount of deposits was $8,315,784 and
the bank balances were $8,395,133. Of the bank balances, $300,000 was covered by
Federal Depository Insurance. The remaining bank baiances were collateralized with
securities held by the pledging financial institution’s agent in the government’s name.

Credit Risk:
The city may invest idle funds as authorized in North Dakota Statutes, as follows:

(a) Bonds, treasury bills and notes, or other securities that are a direct obligation insured or
guaranteed by, the treasury of the United States, or its agencies, instrumentalities, or

organizations created by an act of congress.
(b) Securities sold under agreements to repurchase written by a financial institution in which

the underlying securities for the agreement to repurchase are the type listed above.
(c) Certificates of Deposit fully insured by the federal deposit insurance corporation.
{d) Obligations of the state.

As of December 31, 2007, the city held certificates of deposit totaling $2,146,147.
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Accounts receivable consists of amounts on open account from individuals for goods and
services furnished by the city. No allowance has been established for estimated uncollectible

Utility billings receivable consists of amounts due from citizens on open account for waier,
sewer and garbage services fumished by the city. No allowance has been established for

The taxes receivable represenis the past four years of delinquent uncoliected faxes. No

The county treasurer acts as an ageni to collect property taxes levied in the county for all
taxing authorities. Any material collections are distributed after the end of the month.

Property taxes are levied as of January 1. The property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on
property on January 1. The tax levy may be paid in two instaliments: the first installment
includes one-half of the real estate taxes and all the special assessments; the second
installment is the balance of the real estate taxes. The first instaliment is due by March 1 and
the second instailment is due by Octeber 15. A 5% discount is allowed if all taxes and special
assessments are paid by February 15. After the due dates, the bill becomes delinquent and

Most property owners choose {0 pay property taxes and special assessments in a single
payment on or befare February 15 and receive the 5% discount on the properly taxes.

Special assessments receivable consists of uncollected special assessments due the City at
December 31 and uncertified special assessments, which represents a long-term receivable
in the financial statements. No allowance has been established for uncollectible special

[NOTE4: ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
accounts receivable.
NOTE 5: UTILITY BILLINGS RECEIVABLE !
estimated uncollectible utility billings receivable.
NOTE 6:  TAXES RECEIVABLE |
aliowance has been established for uncollectible taxes receivable.
penalties are assessed.
NOTE 7: SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS RECEIVABLE I
assessments.
NOTE8: LOANS RECEIVABLE |

Loans receivable consist of loans for the promotion of economic development within the city
through various Wahpeton sales tax and loan funds. The loans receivable activity for the year
ended December 31, 2007 is as follows:

Beginning Ending
City Fund: Baiance Additions Deductions Balance
Real Estate Levy Fund $ 2,885 3 - $ 2585 |§% -
Sales Tax Operating Fund 720,566 - 21,066 699,500
Sanitary Sewer Operating Fund 25 - 25 -
Sales Tax Reserve Fund 35,000 - 35,000 -
Sales Tax H.E.L.P. Housing 7,161 5,000 1,955 10,206
Revolving Loan Fund 678,865 110,753 194,135 595,483
Totaf Loans Receivable 31,444,202 $115,753 $254,766 $1,305,189
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NOTE S  CAPITAL ASSETS

The following is a summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended December 31,

2007:

Governmental Activilies:

Balance Balance
Governmental Activities: 1-1-07 Increases Decreases 12-31-07
Capital assets not being depreciated:
tand $ 243,510 $191,768 $ $ 4358678
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings $ 2,862,987 | $ 15,000 $ - $ 2,877,987
Equipment 3,428,924 293,678 193,282 3,528,320
Vehicles 345,240 47 857 17,955 374,942
Infrastructure 9,494,030 - - 9,494,030
Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated $16,131,181 $ 356,335 $211,237 $16,276,279
Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Buiidings § 663,702 § 44,897 $ - $ 1,008,599
Equipment 1,310,570 210,190 178,315 1,342,445
Vehicles 217,248 39,272 7,182 249,338
Infrastructure 1,350,149 189,881 - 1,540,030
Total Accumulated Depreciation $ 3,841,660 §484,240 $185,457 § 4,140,412
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated, Net | $12,289,512 $(127,908) § 25,740 $12,135,867
Governmental Activities-Capiial Assets, Net | $12,5633,422 $ 63,863 $ 25,740 $12,571,645
Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the city as follows:
Governmental Acfivities: Amounts
General Government $ 34,172
Public Safety 92,551
Public Works 167,636
Infrastructure 189,881
Total Depreciation Expense - Governmental Activities $484,240
Business-Type Activities:
Balance Balance
Business-Type Activities: 1-1-07 Increases | Decreases 12-31-07
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings $ 2,316,946 $ - 5 . $ 2,316,946
Equipment 3,904,494 38,320 33,000 3,909,814
Vehicles 36,319 - - 36,319
Infrastruciure 4,417,436 - - 4,417 436
Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated $10,675,195 $ 38,320 $33,000 $10,680,515
Less Accurnulated Depreciation for:
Buildings $ 597,062 $ 46,339 5 - $ 643,401
Equipment 2,634,425 155,880 33,000 2,757,305
Vehicles 16,380 5,564 - 21,944
tnfrastruciure 768,149 88,349 - 856,498
Total Accumulated Depreciation $ 4,016,016 $296,132 $33,000 $ 4,279,148
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated, Net | $§ 6,659,179 $(257812) | § - $ 6,401,367
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Component Unit - Library:

Balance Balance
Governmental Activities (Library): 1-1-07 Increases | Decreases 12-31-07
Capital assels being depreciated:
Buildings $25,000 5 - b - $25,000
Equipment 5,982 - - 5,982
Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated $25,000 5 - b - $30,982
Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Buildings $25,000 5 - b - $25,000
Equipment - 398 - 3589
Total Accumulated Cepreciation $25,000 $ 399 b - $25,389
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated, Net 3 - 3(399) 5 - 3 5,583

[NOTE 10: TRANSFERS |

The foliowing is a reconciliation between transfers in and transfers out as reported in the basic
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2007:

Fund Transfers In Transfers Qut
Major Funds:

General Fund $ 339,057 $ 327,683
Sales Tax Cperating Fund - 152,763
Capital Improvements 192,561 -
Revolving Loan Fund 32,600 -
Sales Tax Reserve - 87,000
Debt Service Funds 605,129 137,834
Capital Projects Funds - 579,619
Water Enterprise Funds 1,525 112,000
Nonmajor Funds:

Special Revenue Funds 379,187 215,504
Sewer Enterprise Fund 62,851 -
Vector Contrat Enterprise Fund 73 -
Total Transfers $1,612,383 $1.612,383

Transfers are used to 1) move unrestricted general fund revenues to finance various
programs, 2) move sales tax revenues to fund programs and projects and 3) move revenues
from the fund with collection authorization to the debt service fund as debt service principal
and interest payments become due.

NOTE 11: DEFERRED REVENUET

Deferred revenue in the governmental fund modified accrual basis financial statements as of
December 31, 2007 for the city consisted of the following:

Detinquent property taxes receivable (general fund) $ 42,996
Delinguent property taxes (debt service funds) 71,673
Delinquent special assessments receivable (debt service funds) 185,928
Delinquent property taxes recsivable (nonmajor funds) 48,299
Total Deferred Revenue $348,896

30




CITY OF WAHPETON
Notes to the Financial Statements - Continued

NOTE 12 LONG-TERM LIABILITIES |

During the year ended December 31, 2007, the following shanges occurred in long-term
liabilities of the city:

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

Governmental Activities:

Balance Balance Due Within
Governmental Activities: 1-1-07 Increases Decreases 12-31-07 One Year
Special Assessment Bonds $9.401,405 | $1,850,000 | § 979,776 | $10,271,629 | $§ 961,348
lLoans Payabie 222,348 - 108,495 113,863 113,853
Leases Payable - 147,183 4,411 142,782 27,145
Compensated Absences * 108,864 - 2,566 106,298 -
Total Governmental Activities | $8,732,617 | $1,997,183 $1,005,248 | $10,634,562 | $1,102,346
Business-Type Activities (Proprietary Funds):
Balance Balance Due Within
Business-Type Activities. 1-1-07 increases | Decreases 12-31-07 One Year
Revenue Bonds $2,832,961 $ - $181,224 $2,651,737 $188,225
Compensated Absences ™ 21,541 252 - 21,793 -
Total Business-Type Activities | $2,854,502 3252 $181,224 | $2,673,530 $188,225

*_ The change in compensated absences is shown as a net change because changes

n

salary prohibit exact calculations of additions and reductions at a reasonable cost,

Special Assessment Debt:

The city has issued special assessment bonds to provide funds for the cost of various
improvement districts within the city. Special assessments on benefited property are used to
pay for the cost of these improvements. The city is required to levy a special assessment
deficiency tax, in the event that collections of special assessments and other revenues are
insufficient for the repayment of the bonds.

Long-term debt of the governmental activities at December 31, 2007, is comprised of the
foliowing individual issues:

Special Assessment Bonds:

$550,000 2003B Refunding Improvement Bonds #10003, due in annua!
installments of $30,000 to $110,000 through 2009; interest at 1.35% to

2.4%.

$2,375,000 19998 Refunding Improvement Serial Bonds #9698, due in
annual installments of $155,000 to $160,000 through 2014, interest at

4.25% to 4.95%.

$810,000 Refunding Improvement Bonds #9800, due in an annual
installment of $10,000 ta $55,000 through 2018, with interest at 4.8% to

5.35%.

$2.,050,000 2003D Refunding Improvement Bonds #10303, due in
annual installments of $135,000 to $150,000 through 2019, with interest

at 3.0% to 4.0%.

$ 71629

1,685,000

430,000

1,650,000
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$1.760,000 2003 Refunding improvement Bonds #9902, due in annual
inctaliments of $120,000 to $125,000 through 2017, with interest at
2.4% 10 4.25%.

$2.000,000 2005 Refunding Improvement Bonds, due in annual
installments of $110,000 to $170,000 through 2020, with interest at
3.75% to 4.0%.

$1.180,000 1995 Refunding Improvement Bonds #9395, due in annual
installments of $70,000 te $75,000 through 2011, with interest at 5.0%

to 5.5%.

$4.600,000 Refunding tmprovement Bonds- of 1987, due in annual
installments of $70,000 to $125,000 through 2017, with interest at
4.85% to 5.125%.

$970,000 2007 Refunding tmprovement Bonds #10506, due in annual
installments of $45,000 to $70,000 through 2021, with interest at 4.0%.

$1,850,000 2007 Refunding improvement Bonds #10607, due in annual
installments of $95,000 to $165,000 through 2022, with interest at 3.5%

o 4.375%.

Totai Special Assessment Bonds

Loans Payable:

$424,252 Loan from Norwest Investment Services, due in one annuai
installments of $113,854 in 2008, with interest at 4.95%.

$147,193 Capital Lease/Loan from Bank of the West, due in monthly
installments for 60 months of $2,733 through 2012, with interest at

4.71%.
Total Loans Payable

Total Governmental Fund Long-Term Debt

$ 1,200,000

1,775,000

285,000

890,000

625,000

_ 1,850,000

$10.271.629

$ 113,853

142 782

— e —

$ 256,835
10,528,264

Governmental activities debt service requirements to maturity (excluding compensated

absences and leases payable) at December 31, 2007 are as follows:

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

Total Debt Payable

Year Ending | Special Assessment Bonds Loans Payable
Becember 31 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2008 $ 961,348 $ 399,232 | $140,999 | $11,312 $ 1,102,347 | § 410,544
2009 925,281 367,962 28,344 4,449 953,625 372,411
2010 910,000 331,090 29,596 3,197 939,596 334,287
2011 925,000 293,249 30,903 1,890 955,903 295,139
2012 855,000 256,341 26,793 535 881,793 256,876
2013-2017 3,925,000 758,415 - - 3,925,000 758,415
2018-2021 1,770,000 146,169 - - 1,770,000 146,169
Totals $10,271,629 $2,552,458 | $256,635 | $21,383 $10,528,264 | $2,573,841
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Proprietary Funds — Revenue Bonds:

The city issues bonds where the city pledges income derived from the operations to pay debt
service. The proceeds of the bonds are used to finance various capital improvement projects.
The Refunding Revenue Bonds are special obligations of the city payable sclely from, and
secured as to payment of principal and interest by a pledge of, the receipts from revenues of

the water, sewer and garbage utility systems.

The general taxing power of the city is not pledged to the payment of these bonds either as {o
principai or interest. The bonds do not constitute a general obligation of the city, nor will they
exceed the debt limit of the city within the meaning of any constitutional, statutory or charter

provision, limitatien or restriction.

Enterprise Revenue Bonds — Set Payment Schedules:

£520,000 of 1999 Revenue Bonds with the North Dakota Municipal
Bond Bank State Revolving Fund; due in annual instaliments of $15,000
to $20,000 through 2018, with interest at 2.5%. $ 220,000

$1,062,366 of 1993 Revenue Bonds, due in annual instaliments of
$55.000 to $62,366 through 2014, with interest at 2.5%. 412,366

$1.8580,000 of 2003 Revenue Bonds with the North Dakota Municipal
Bond Bank State Revolving Fund Program. Due in annua! instaliments
of $80,000 to $118,000 through 2022, with interest at 2.5%. 1,691,000

$374.065 of 2003 Revenue Bonds with the North Dakota Municipal
Bond Bank State Revolving Fund Program. Due in annual instaliments
of $15,000 to $25,000 through 2023, with interest at 2.5%. 315,000

$550,000 of 2003 Refunding Improvement Bonds Series B, due in
annual instaliments of $30,000 to $110,000 through 2009, with interest

at 1.35% to 2.4%. 13.371
Total Enterprise Revenue Bonds $2,6561,737

Revenue bond debt service requirements with set payment schedules to maturity are as
fallows:

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES

Year Ending Revenue Bonds Payable
December 31 Principal Interest
2008 $ 186,652 $ 66,163
2009 184,719 61,566
2010 187,000 57,009
2011 194,000 52,334
2012 196,000 47,484
2013-2017 840,356 166,918
2018-2022 712,000 72,250
2023-2026 151,000 3,775
Totals $2,651,737 $527.499
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| NOTE 13:

CDBG LOAN PAYABLE

The city has obtained Community Development Block Grant (CBDG) Loans to provide
financial assistance to private-sector entities for the acquisition and construction of industrial
and commercial facilities deemed to be in the public interest. The grants are secured by
property financed and are payable solely from the payments received on the underlying
mortgage grants. Upon repayment of the grants, ownership of the acquired facilities transfers
to the private-sector entity served by the grant.

As of December 31, 2007, there were three CDBG loans outstanding, with an aggregate
principal amount payable of $81,200. The City is in no way liable for repayments.

| NOTE 14:

CONDUIT DEBT

industrial Developmeni Revenue Bonds:

From fime to time, the city has issued industrial Revenue Bonds to provide financial
assistance to private sector entities for the acquisition and construction of industrial and
commercial facilities deemed to be in the public interest. The bonds are secured by the
property financed and are payable solely from payments received on the underlying mortgage
loans. Upon repayment of the bonds, ownership of the acquired facilities transfers to the
private-sector entity served by the bond issuance. Neither the city, the state, nor any political
subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the
bonds are not reported as liabilities in the accompanying financial statements.

NOTE 15:

RISK MANAGEMENT

The City of Wahpeton is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to,
and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.

In 1986, state agencies and political subdivisions of the State of North Dakota joined together
to form the North Dakota Insurance Reserve Fund (NDIRF), a public entity risk pool currently
operating as a common risk management and insurance program for the state and cver 2,000
political subdivisions. The City pays an annual premium to NDIRF for its general liability, auto,
and public assets insurance coverage. The coverage by NDIRF is limited to losses of two
million dollars per occurrence for general liability, one million dollars per occurrence for
automobile coverage and up to $2,025,769 for public assets {(mobile equipment and portable

property) coverage.

The City of Wahpeton also participates in the North Dakota Fire and Tornado Fund and the
State Bonding Fund. The city pays an annual premium to the Fire and Tornado Fund to cover
property damage to buildings and personal property. Replacement cost coverage is provided
by estimating replacement cost in consultation with the Fire and Tornado Fund. The Fire and
Tornado Fund is reinsured by a third party insurance carrier for losses in excess of one million
doliars per occurrence during a 12-month period. The State Bonding Fund currently provides
political subdivisions with blanket fidelity bond coverage in the amount of $2,000,000 for the
city employees. The State Bonding Fund does not currently charge any premium for this

coverage.

The city has workers compensation with the North Dakota Workforce Safety and Insurance.
The city provides employees with health insurance. Contributions to the insurance plan are
based on years of employment with the city.

Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded insurance coverage in any of the
past three fiscal years.
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NOTE 186:

PENSION PLAN |

Defined Contribution Plan

The City of Wahpeton participates in an IRS 457 deferred compensation plan. Each
employee has the option to join and any participant may withdraw from the retirement 457
plan anytime upon 30 days notice in writing. [Each permanent employee is eligible to
contribute to the retirement plan.

The city only provides & matching contribution to the 457 plan for existing employees that did
not elect to participate in the defined contribution plan at the time of conversion on January 1,
2005. The city had three employees near retirement that chose not to participate in the
defined benefit plan, the city’s required contributions for the years ended December 31, 2007,

2006 and 2005, were $1,563, $1,487, and $3,501, respectively.

Defined Benefit Plan

As of January 1, 2005, the City of Wahpeton coniributes to the North Dakota Public
Employees’ Retirement System (NDPERS), a cost-sharing muitiple-employer defined benefit
pension plan administered by the State of North Dakota. NDPERS provides for retirement,
disability and survivor benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Eligible mandatory
employees hired on or after January 1st, 2005 are required to participate in NDPERS. Benefit
and contribution provisions are administered in accordance with chapter 54-52 of the North
Dakota Century Code. NDPERS isstes a publicly available financial report that incluides
financial statements and required supplementary information for NDPERS. That report may
be obtained by writing to NDPERS, 400 E Broadway, Suite 505, PO Box 1214, Bismarck,

North Dakota, 58502-1214.

Plan members are required to contribute 3% of their annual covered salary. The city is
required to contribute 5.12% which the city chooses to increase to §.12% to reduce the
employee contribution from 4% to 3% of the employee’s salary. The employer contribution
consists of 5.12% for employee retirement and 1% for the retiree health benefits fund. The
contribution requirements of plan members and the city are established and may be amended
by the State legislature. The city’s confributions to NDPERS for the year ending December 31,
2007, 2006 and 2005 were $88,124, $69,522 and $61,215, respectively, equai to the required

contributions for the year.,

| NOTE 17:

FUND DEFICITS |

The following funds were in a deficit position at December 31, 2007:

Balance

Capital Projects Funds:

Rosewood Phase i $ (43,573)
Phase | Interceptor Sewer {187,420)
Phase I 16th Ave. & 210B {212,641)
Phase [l 19th St & 16th Ave. (14,191)
Phase ill 17 th Ave., Westside (836,317)
Dakota Ave. Recanstruction 2008 {12,689)
Total ‘ $(1,306,831)

The city wiil relieve the deficits in the consfruction funds with future special assessment
collections. The remaining fund deficits will be relieved with future tax collections, transfers

and/or fees collected.
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CITY OF WAHPETON

Notes to the Financial Siatements - Continued

( NOTE 18: PRICR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS J

The beginning net assets for the year ended January 1, 2007 included capital assels at the
government-wide leve! for govermnmental
December 31, 2007, it was noted that some errors were noted in beginning accumulated
depreciation. Additionally, fund balance errars were noted for a CDBG Loan payable amount
included in the revolving loan fund which is not a liability to the City. The adjustments are as

follows:

activities.

During ihe audit

period ended

Governmental Activities

Net Assets Equity as previously reported $16,976,920
Adjustments to restate the January 1, 2007 net
assets equity for the following:

Revoiving loan fund balance - remove CDBG payable 93,200
~ Adjustments to beginning accumulated depreciation 20,148
Net Assets Equity January 1, 2007 as restated $17,090,268

Fund Balances

Fund Balance as previously reported $9,566,391
Adjustments to restate the January 1, 2007 fund
balance for the following:

Revolving loan fund baiance - remove CDBG payable 93,200
Fund Batance January 1, 2007 as restated $9,659,591

NOTE 19: CONSTRUCTION COMMITMENTS

The City of Wahpeton had the following open construction contracts on various projects with
balances owing at December 31, 2007:

Contract Total Remaining
Project Contractor Amount Completed Balance

Armory Renovations Foss & Assoc. $ 90,000 $69,750 $ 20,250
Armory Renovations Comstock Construction 739,000 - 739,000
Armory Renovations Robert Gibh & Sons 138,600 - 139,600
Armory Renovations Scoit's Electric 83,400 - 83,400
11th St. Shared Use Path Interstate Engineering 19,500 - 19,500
Total 31,071,500 369,750 $1,001,750
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CITY OF WAHPETON
Wahpeton, North Dakota

GENERAL FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

For the Year Ended December 31, 2007

Original Final Variance with
Budgel Budget Actual Final Budget

Revenues:

Taxes $ 700,270 $ 700,270 $ 732374 $§ 32,104
licenses, permits and fees 462,633 462,833 426,684 {35,949)
Fines and forfeits 164,000 164,000 197,918 33,916
Intergovernmental 713,384 713,394 793,484 280,090
Charges for services 6,950 6,950 18,880 11,830
Interest income 180,000 180,000 214,073 34,073
Miscellaneous income 24,738 24,738 10,789 {13,949)
Total Revenues $ 2251985 % 2251985 § 2,394,200 § 142215
Expendiiures:

Current; ‘
General government $ 525030 525030 § 500,092 $ 24,938
Public safety 1,291,301 1,281,301 1,300,582 {9,281)
Public works 466,768 486,768 475,674 (8,908)
Culture and recreation 81,496 81,496 118,421 (36,925)
Other 10,624 10,624 8,282 2,342
Total Expenditures $ 2,375219 $ 2,375,219 §$ 2,403,061 § (27,832)
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Over Expenditures $§ (123,234) § (123234) § (8,851) § 114,383
Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Transfers in $ 256,626 $ 256626 § 339057 § 82431
Transfers out (168,500) {168,500) (327,663) {159,163)
Total Other Financing Sources and Uses $ 88126 $ 88126 § 11,394 §  (76,732)
Net Change in Fund Balances $ (35108) $ (35.108) & 2,543 § 37,651
Fund Balance - January 1 $ 467,714 § 467714 § 467714 § -
Fund Balance - December 31 $ 432606 § 432606 $ 470257 § 37,651

The accompanying required suppiementary information notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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CITY OF WAHFETON

Wahpeton, North Dakota

BUNDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS FUND
For the Year Ended December 31, 2007

Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
Revenues:
Intergovernmental § 4,238 % 4238 § 4238 § -
Interest income 30,00C 30,000 34,803 4,803
Miscellanecus income 3,154 3,154 3,154 -
Tolal Revenues $ 37392 $ 37,392 § 42195 B 4,803
Expenditures:
Current:
General Government $ 35000 § 35000 & 5300 & 29,700
Pubiic Safety 29,131 29,131 34,283 (5,152)
Pubtic Works 246,000 246,000 338,837 (92,837)
Debt Service:
Principal - - 4,412 (4412}
Interest and Fees - - 1,244 (1,244)
Total Expenditures $ 310131 $ 310,131 $§ 384,076 $§ (73,945)
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expendifures $ (272,739) § (272,739) $ (341,881) § (69,142)
Other Financing Scurces (Uses}):
Transfers in $ 95200 § 85,200 $ 192,581 § 97,361
Capital lease proceeds - - 147,193 (147,193)
Total Other Financing Sources {Uses) $ 95200 $ 95200 § 339,754 §  (49,832)
Net Change in Fund Balances $ (177,539) $ (177,539) § (2,127) § (118,874)
Fund Balance - January 1 § 772123 § 772423 § 772123 § -
Fund Balance - December 31 $ 594584 $ 594584 $ 769,996 § (118,974)

The accompanying required supplementary information notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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CITY OF WAHPETON
Wahpeton, North Dakota

RBUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

SALES TAX OPERATING FUND

Eor the Year Ended December 31, 2067

Revenues:

Saies taxes

Interest income
Miscellaneous income

Total Revenuss

Expenditures:
Current:
Economic Development

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Qver Expendifures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers cut

Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balance - January 1

Fund Balance - December 31

Criginal Final Variance with
Budget Budge! Actual Final Budget

$ 440,000 $§ 440,000 $ 498940 § 58,940
15,000 15,000 53,028 38,028

200 200 8,389 8,189

$ 455200 § 455200 § 560,357 $ 105,157
$ 50,000 $ 50,000 § 122,138 § (72,139)
§ 405200 $ 405200 § 438218 3 33,018
$ (186,100) $ (186,100) $ (152,763) § 33,337
$ 219,100 $ 219,100 § 285455 § 66,355
$ 1,208,101 $ 1,208,101 § 1,208,101 § -
$ 1427201 $ 1427201 % 1,493,556 § 66,355

The accompanying required supplementary information notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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CITY CF WAHPETON
Wahpeton, North Dakota

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

SALES TAX RESERVE FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2067

Revenues:

Sales taxes

Interest income
Miscellaneous income

Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Current:

Economic Development

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses);
Transfers out

Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balance - January 1

Fund Balance - December 31

Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget

§ 220,000 $ 220,000 $ 249470 § 29,470
5,800 5,800 79,122 73,322

- - 4,500 4,500

$ 225800 $ 225800 $ 333082 § 107,282

5 60,000 § 60,000 $ 506,390 § (446,390)

$ 165800 § 165800 $§ (173,298) $ (339,098)

$ - 8 - $ (87,000) $ (B7,000)

$ 165800 $ 165800 § (260,208) § (426,098)

$ 1478155 $ 1,478,155 § 1,478,155 § -

$ 1,643,955 $ 1,643,955 §$ 1217857 & (426,098)

The accompanying required supplementary information notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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CITY OF WAHPETON
Wahpeton, North Dakota

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
REVOLVING LOAN FUND
For the Year Ended December 31, 2007

Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
Revenues:
Loan receivable receipts B - & - % 8275 5 8,275
interest income - - 43 907 43,907
Miscellaneous incoime - - 127,646 127,646
Total Revenues 3 - § - % 179828 § 179828
Expenditures:
Current;
Economic Development 3 - 3 - $ 248960 § (249960)
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
COver Expenditures 3 - % - & (70132) §  (70,132)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in 5 - 5 - $ 32000 § 32,000
Net Change in Fund Balances $ - 5 - $ (38132) § (38,132)
Fund Balance - January 1 $ 1403242 $ 1403242 § 1,403,242 § -
Fund Balance - December 31 $ 1,403,242 $ 1403242 § 1,365,110 § (38,132)

The accompanying required supplementary information notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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CITY OF WAHPETON
Wahpeton, North Dakota

NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
December 31, 20607

NOTE 1:

STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Budgetary information:

The governing board adopts an annual budget on a basis consistent with GAAP for the
general fund, each special revenue fund and each debt service fund of the municipality. The
city is required to present the adopted and final amended revenues and expenditures for

@ach of these funds.

The following procedures are followed in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the
financial statements:

e On or before September 10th of the preceding fiscal year, the city prepares a prefiminary
budget for the next succeeding year beginning January 1st. The preliminary budget
includes a detaiied breakdown of the estimated revenues and appropriations.

s The governing board holds a public hearing where any taxpayer may testify in favor or
against any proposed disbursements or 1ax levies requested in the preliminary budget.
After the budget hearing and on or before October 1st, the hoard adopts the final budget.

« The final budget must be filed with the county auditor by October 16th.

¢ No disbursement shali be made or liability incurred in excess of the total appropriation by
fund. However, the governing board may amend the budget during the year for any
revenue and appropriations not anticipated at the time the budget was prepared. The
budget amendments must be approved by the board and the approval must be noted in
the proceedings of the board.

« All annual appropriations lapse at year-end.
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CITY OF WAHPETON
Wahpeton, North Dakota

SCHEDULE OF FUND ACTIVITY
CLIENT BASIS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2007

Balance Transfers Debt Transfers Baiance

1-1-07 Revenue in Proceeds OCut Expendiiures §2-31-07
Major Funds:
General Fund $ 27791370 $2391,97281 § 330068705 § - § 32766303 § 2,35376683 § 32751370
Sales Tax Operating Fund $ 1,182,913.76 § 53434918 & - § - 3 182,762.52 § 272,138.82 §1,292,361.58
Sales Tax Reserve 1,465,561.49 320,088.24 - - 87,000.00 506,390.18 1,192,259.55
Capital Imiprovamants T72,122.83 42,194,891 182,560.85 - - 236,882.53 769,896.00
Revolving Loan Fund 1,310,041 66 179,828 43 32,000.00 - - 150,567.62 1,371,302.57
Total Major Funds % 5,008,55344 $346843335 § 5HB3617.00 § - $ 58742555 § 3,519,74568 §40953433.46
Nonmajor Funds;
Special Revenue Funds: .
Armory Operating 3 6,763.15 § - § 5500000 § - § - $ 15,850.84 F 4591231
Fire Department Levy 39,222.68 159,388.46 - - 24,600.00 55,122.02 118,888.12
Real Estate Levy 108,076.94 36,119.81 120,000.00 - 24,600.00 55,383.74 184,213.01
Job Development Levy 102,711.28 24.510.27 - - - - 127,221.56
Sales Tax Default Reserve 108,555.48 - - - - - 108,555.48
Sales Tax Development Reserva 485,200.00 - - - - - 495,200.00
Sales Tax Mini-Match Reserve 34,568.68 - - - B & 576,40 25 083,28
Sales Tax Help Fund 330,864.67 16,309 87 - - - 30.00 347,144.54
Clubhouse Maintenance 18,638.43 5,000.00 - - - 40.00 23,598.43
Lodging Tax £,892.31 33,287.00 - - - 19,143.40 21,085.91
Vector Control 4,215.83 12,491.29 - - - 18,401.89 306.23
Advertising 1525122 29.905.02 - - - 24,184 .85 20,871.38
Airport 3,845.58 52,630.61 - - - . B3,408.27 3,067.92
Planning Commission 24,931.40 40,575.356 148,30 - - 32,140.32 33,512.73
Band Levy 184.86 3,565.51 - - - 3,482.70 267.67
Social Security Levy 19,263.57 80,208.68 - - 80,158.43 - 18,315.82
Retirement Levy 58,823.97 43,034.18 - - 59,250.30 - 48 667.82
Health insurance Reserve 14,994.32 449 17 - - - 7,683.90 7,759.59
Special Street Maintenance 76,245.23 106,193.58 - - - 52,790.66 120,648.15
3now/Flood Emergency 36,775.66 25,737.68 - - - 23,805.63 38,847.71
Levee Maintenance - - 48,360.85 - - 48,360.85 -
City Share of Specials 75,652.50 30,668.85 - - - 75,098.46 31,222.50
Ambulance Levy 3,703.90 26,614,93 - - - 24,968 96 5,318.87
Unemployment Reserve 42,6980.18 - B - - - 42,690.18
Professional Development Fund 156,86 1,370.00 - B - 719.18 807.68
Miscellaneous Furd 68.55 4,520.00 - - - 4,475.00 143.55
Weed Maintenance Levy 33,476.13 33,345.30 - - 11,685 00 21,727.12 33,409 31
Handicapped Parking Fines - 100.00 - - 100.00 -
Comm. Emergency Response (CERT) 48.87 1,700.00 - - 294.59 1,454.28
Employee Bonus/Retirament 54,587.90 - B - 15,171.84 82450 38,601.47
Bulk Fuel 4 452,27 2.835.20 - - - 298 48 6,889.08
Downlown Cleanup Fund 11.9682.15 - - - - - . 1186215
Christmas Decorating Fund 169.00 - . - - - 169.00
Bowntown Development Process 13,483.08 - - - - - 13,483.08
Sidewalk Maintenance 33,421.01 - - - - 2,991.30 30,429.71
Laocal Law Enforcement Block Grant 5,15 - - - - - 5,15
Palice Dept, Radio Sinking Fund 7.500.00 - 2,500.00 - - - 10,006 .00
Falice Dept. Canine Unit Fund 9,065.33 941,48 - . - - 1,300.29 8,706.50
Community Policing Fund 1,563.30 582.71 - - - 735.66 1,410.35
Economic Development - 1,280.12 153,180.31 - - 154,470.43 -
coC 13,163.74 596,73 - - - - 13,760.47
Total Special Revenue Funds § 181130719 § 778,97285 § 37918748 § - $ 21550357 % 70430153 § 205068240
Debt Service Funds:
City Hall Buikding Sinking Fund § 12210719 % - 3 - § - $ - $ 11950103 % 2,806.16
Special Assessment Deficiency 200,104.73 24,284.77 - - 73,616.51 - 158,782.09
R/ 8590 Sinking Fund 87,602.18 - - - 61,802.18 25,700.00 -
R/1 9385 Sinking Fund 161,079.14 74,781.26 - - - ) 92,527.50 143,332.90
R/t 9485 Sinking Fund 2,844,863 35,842,171 73,616.51 - 241579 109,683.06 -
RA 9596 Sinking Fund 290,591.32 131,282.15 - - - 127,237.51 284,645 96
R/l 9698 Sinking Fund 17.479.38 26,421.71 185,100.00 . - 214,662.50 14,338.57
R/ 9800 Sinking Fund 58,506.66 7341850 - - - 78,541.25 53,383.91
R/ 9802 Sinking Fund 289,719.76 181,942.18 - - - 172,779.50 258,382.44
R/ 10003 Sinking Fund 149,228.73 40,961.14 - - - 57,682.00 132,500.87
R/1 10303 Sinking Fund 432,173.98 22251516 - - - 210,800.00 444 288,14
R/ 10405 Sinking Fund 184,177.00 - 182,412.50 - - 182,391.50 184,198.00
R/l 10506 Sinking Fund 26,279.60 127,530.24 - - - 82,659.12 71.250.72
R/l 10607 Sinking Fund - - 164,000.00 - - - 164,000.00
Total Debt Service Funds § 2,030,504.28 § 930,396.82 § 605,125.01 § - $ 137,834.48 § 1,474,076.97 §1,063,211.66
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CITY OF WAHPETON
Wahpeion, North Dakota

SCHEDULE OF FUND ACTIVITY
CLIENT BASIS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2007

CONTINUED:

Capital Projects Funds:
Phase | Interceptor Sewer

5-1-87 Flood Phase Il
1-1-04 Rosewood i
Ph It 168th Ave. & 210B intersection

Ph Il 19th St & 18th Ave.

Ph Hl 17th Ave, Westside Dev.
{Jakota Ave. Reconstruction 2008
1/2 Sales Tax Fund

Totat Capital Projects Funds
Total Nonmajor Funds

Totai Governmental Activities

Malor Enterprise Funds:
Water Operating
Meter Deposits

Total Water Operating - Major

Nonmaior Enterprise Funds:
Sewer Operating

Waste Removal
Waste Reduction
Tolal Waste Fund
Vector Control

Street Lights

Total Nenmajor Enterprise Funds

Total Enterprise Funds

Total Primary Govermnment

Component Unit:
Library

Total Reporting Entity

Balance Transfars Debt Transfers Balance
1-1-07 Revenue In Proceeds Qut Expenditures 12-31-07
§ (1,445.04) § - & -3 - B - % 18597511 § (187,420.15)
(29,837.94)  1,341,857.25 - 1,829 436,69 - 3,007,583.32 133,672.68
- B - - - 43,573.05 (43,573.05)
(13.478.62) - - - - 199,162.18 (212,640.78)
- - - - - 14,191.00 (14,191.00)
(57,769.74) - - - - 778,547.31 (836,317.08)
(12,643.70) - - - - 45.00 (12,688.70)
574,873.58 472,032.65 - - 579,619.43 - 468,186.80
i 450,608.54 $1,814,588.90 § - $1,820423668 $ 57961843 § 4.229076.85 3 (704,871.25)
% 4,301,600.01 $23533862.57 3 984,316.47 §$1,825,426.60 § 093295748 $ 6,407,455456 § 3,308,802 81
$ 9,310,153.45 $7.002,395.92 §1,54793437 § 1,828,436.60 §1,500,383.03 $ 9,927,201.13 §8,262,336.27
8 714,282 83 $1.017,984.70 § 162441 % - 3 11200000 % 907.979.81 § 713,812.33
§,308.86 {185.00) - - - 854.11 5,258.75
3 720,581.69 $1,.017,78870 § 152441 § - $ 11200000 % 908,833.72 § 71907208
% 174,469.87 $ 36633119 § 52,851.10 § - 3 - $ 366,518.63 & 237,133.53
$ 40,17569 $ 219,28650 - 5 - 3 - 3 217,124.56 § 51,447 .63
62,217.82 15,480.67 - - - 2,702.98 75,004.51
$  111,39351 § 23488517 § - 5 - $ - $ 21982754 § 128,452.14
5 56,23934 $  24161.27 § 73145 % - 5 - $ 16,665.24 §  63,008.82
% 257523 % 8521675 % - $ - § - $ 94,862.20 % 8,920.78
3 35067795 § 72059538 % 5202425 § - ] - 5 697,773.61 § 43642397
§ 1.071,2680.64 $1,738,38508 § 64,448.65 $ - $ 412,000.00 $ 1,606,607.33 §1,155486.05

$10,381,423.09

$8,740,781.00

$1,612,383.03

$1,828,436.60 $1,612,383.03 §11,533,808.46

5941783232

$

43,401.47

§ 250,187.03

$ -

$ -

5

$

208,326.23

§ 5526227

$10,424,824 56

$ 8,960,968 03

$1,612.383.03

$1.829436.60 §1612383038 §11,742,134.60

$9.473.094.59
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LOCAL GOVERNMENT DHVISION:
FARGO OFFICE
MANAGER - DAVID MiX
(?01) 239-7252
FAX {701} 238-7251

STATE AUDITOR
ROBERT R. PETERSON
PHONE
(701 328-2241
FAX
(761) 32B-1408

STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA

OFFICE OF THE STATE AUDITOR

500 E. BOULEVARD AVENUE - DEPT. 117
BISMARCK. ND 58505

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPCRTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFCRMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

City Coungil
City of Wahpeton
Wahpeton, North Dakota

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type activities, the
discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
City of Wahpeton, North Dakota as of and for the year ended December 31, 2007, which coliectively
comprise the City of Wahpeton's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated
September 10, 2008. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government

Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of Wahpeton's internal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of
Wahpeton’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City of Wahpeton’s internal control over financial reporting.

A controf deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normai course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect misstatements
on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a controt deficiency, or combination of confrol deficiencies, that
adversely affects the City's ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, or report financial data reliably in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles such that there is more than a remote likelihood
that a misstatement of the City's financial statements that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented
or detected by the City's internal control. We consider the deficiency described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and responses fo be a significant deficiency in internal confrol over financial reporting.
The significant deficiency is described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as

ftem 07-01.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in more
than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be prevented or

detected by the City’s internal control.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify ali deficiencies in internal contral that might be
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. However, we helieve item 07-01 to be a2 material weakness,

as defined above.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Wahpelon's financial statements are
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncomptliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compiiance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that is required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the City Council, and others within
the City, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Robert R. Paterson
State Auditor

September 10, 2008 '
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CITY OF WAHPETON
Wahpeton, North Dakola

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2007

Section I - Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statements

Type of Report Issued?

Governmental Activities Unqualified
Business-Type Activities Lingualified
Component Unit Unguaiified
Major Funds Unqualified
Aggregate Remaining Fund Information Unqualified

internal Centrol over financial reporting:

Material weaknesses identified? X Yes No

Significant deficiencies identified not considered to be
material weaknesses? Yas X No

Noncompliance material to financial statements
noted? Yes X No

Federal Awards

Interna! Control over major programs:

Material weaknesses identified? Yes X No

Reportabie conditions identified not considered to be
material weaknesses? Yes X __ None reported

Section II - Financial Statement Findings

07-01 - UNCOLLECTIBLE LOANS RECEIVABLE

Condition:

Upon reviewing the City of Wahpetoen Economic Development Loan schedules, it was determined that
several of the loans were delinquent. In the case of some loans, the City had exhausted all avenues of
colfection. These loans were inciuded in the City’s ioan receivable balances an the general ledger and in
the financial statements. Additionally, the City had established no provision for uncollectible loans.
Known extremely delinquent loans receivable deemed uncollectible totaled approximately $87,000.

Criteria:

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that loans receivable is
valued at net realizable vafue for financial reporting purposes.
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CiTY OF WAHPETON
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Cosls - Confinued

Effect:

Loans receivable could be materially misstated by including balances in the general ledger and financial
statements after collection efforts are exhaustad.

Recommendation:

We recommend that the City Council and city management pericdically evaluate ocutstanding loans
receivable to determine colectability of deiinquent loans. The City should establish a provision for
uncollectible loans to better reflect the true valuation of these loans for financial reporting purposes. We
further recommend that any loans written off are approved by the governing board.

Views of Rasponsible Officials:

Per discussion with appropriate client personnel, an allowance for doubtful loans will be established and
delinguent loans will be evaluated for potential write-off.
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